
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Group Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and 

 

 Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 for 

 

 Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 



 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 Page 

 

Company Information   1 

 

Group Strategic Report   2 

 

Report of the Directors   3 

 

Report of the Independent Auditors   5 

 

Consolidated Income Statement   7 

 

Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income   8 

 

Consolidated Balance Sheet   9 

 

Company Balance Sheet   10 

 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity   11 

 

Company Statement of Changes in Equity   12 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements   13 

 

  



 Page 1 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Company Information 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 DIRECTORS: Mr. M Saldanha 

 Mrs. S Saldanha 

 Mr. J Sharma 

 Mr S Jayanna 

 

 

 

 

 

 SECRETARY: Mrs G Jacks  

 

 

 

 

 

 REGISTERED OFFICE: Cheshire House 

 Gorsey Lane 

 Widnes 

 WA8 ORP 

 

 

 

 

 

 REGISTERED NUMBER: 05467597 (England and Wales) 

 

 

 

 

 

 AUDITORS: PBG Associates Limited 

  Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 

 65 Delamere Road 

 Hayes, Middx 

 UB4 0NN 



· lark •• :!n, Phanna I ·,K. LilllilCd 

Gr(lun " rate!!ic Reron 
for [he Y"dr Ended 31 ~ larch ~O 19 

The directors present the slratcgi..: report and financial statements for the year end '<131 March 2010. 

FAIR RE\ IE\\ OF BUSI.,,\ES·' 
The compnn, hoI 15 entire ordinary share capital of Marksans Holdings Limited and Rclonchem Limited. \l.lr}..";IIlS 
Holdings Limited O\\'I1S 100% of the ordinary share capital of Bell, Sons & Co. (Druggists) Limited. 

The directors consider the results of Bell, Sons & Co. (Druggists Limited for the year to be satisfactory. During the 
vcar sales increased from £18,021.449 to £22,119,801 and the profit on ordinary activities before taxation was £ 
641.-196 (20 IS: £133,914). The directors expect an increase in the level of activity in the forthcoming year. 

he directors consider the results of Rclonchem Limited for the year to he satisfactory. Durin; the} ear like for like 
•• ales deer -ased from £14,096.505 to f23.S::!8.455 and the profit on ordinarv activities before lax lion was £3.71J.::!-lS 
~OI8: £3.1.J:!7.468). 

h<.: business mode! of company is 10 secure sustained profitable gro\\1h via a change in customer base to 5Up?Nl Ion;; 
crrn supply arrangements nd a progressive commercial reactivation of its substaruial product portfolio Ilcvcr3:;in:; <HI 

he 10\\'e05t manufacturing of it parent \tuks::ms Pharma Limited). The directors there or expect the performance of 
he company to continue I lilt' improved ill the next financial year. 

Increasing purchasing costs continue to threaten margins. The group manages thi" ris}.. hy cstablishir.j; stronj; 
relationship with suppliers (ill particuluar its parent Marksans Pharma Limited). to enable ncgori.uion and contrul 
management of potential future price increases and secure reliable supply. III addition, production methods arc 
constantly being reviewed to ":11. ure the 11105t efficient operation arc ill place, 

he group will continue 10 d .\ clop its product range: through new product development and acquisition of lie znce s. W 
meet market need .. 

The group profit for the year, after laxation. amounted to .£ 3.1 ::!6,093 120! 8: _2.S9 .. U': I 

0;-'; BEIIALF OF Til E BOARD: 

Page::! 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Report of the Directors 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

The directors present their group annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principle activity of the company continued to be that of a holding company. 

 

The principal activity of Bell, sons & Co. (Druggists) Limited is the manufacture and sale of Pharmaceuticals, while the 

principal activity of Relonchem Limited continued to be the development, registration and distribution of generic 

prescription Pharmaceuticals in the UK. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of financial statements were as follow: 

 

Mr. M Saldanha 

Mr. J Sharma 

Mrs. S Saldanha 

Mr S Jayanna 

Mr R. D. Williams (Resigned on 27th March 2019) 

 

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS 

The results for the year are set out on page 7. 

 

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 

 

AUDITORS 

The auditors PBG Associates Ltd will be proposed for reappointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT 

The directors are responsible for preparing the group annual report and the financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and regulation. 

 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors 

have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practices (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not 

approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of state of affairs of the 

company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors 

are required to: 

-select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently. 

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

- State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 

and explained in the financial statements 

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will 

continue in business. 

 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

group's and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group 

and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They 

are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for 

the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 



illarksans Pharrn;1 I i.K. Limited 

Renort ofthc Directors 
tor the Y c:lr Ended 3 1 1\ larch 20 I C) 

'TATD1E:\T ,\S TO DI CLOS{lI{E OF INFOR'\!ATIO:\ TO .·\lJDITOR 
$0 far as each person who was a director at Ihe date of approving this report is ::1\\ are. then: is no n:l<:\ ant audit 
informntion of which tile company's auditors are unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all th", 
necessary steps tha! they ought 10 have taken as directors ill order to make themselves :!W;Jr' of all rclcv ant audit 
information and to establish that the company 's auditors are aware orlhal information, 

ON tlEIlALf OF 'fifE BOARD: 

Date: ::! I" May. 2019 
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries 

(the 'group') for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Other 

Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity, Company Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 

applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice).  

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the 

group's profit for the year then ended;  

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where:  

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the group's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of 

at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Group 

Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors, but does not include the financial statements and our Report of the 

Auditors thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 

report in this regard.  

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

- the Group Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 

requirements.  





 

 The notes form part of these financial statements 

 

 Page 7 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Consolidated Income Statement   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019 2018 

 Notes £ £ £ £ 

 

TURNOVER 3 44,322,262 39,398,419 

 

Cost of sales 35,822,072 31,371,569 

    

GROSS PROFIT 8,500,190 8,026,850 

 

Distribution costs 1,191,833 1,240,121 

Administrative expenses 3,220,286 2,883,379 

   4,412,119    4,123,500 

    

 4,088,071 3,903,350 

 

Other operating income 9,706 24,949 

    

OPERATING PROFIT 5 4,097,777 3,928,299 

 

 

Interest payable and similar expenses  7 168,409 225,181 

    

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  3,929,368 3,703,118 

 

Tax on profit 8 803,275 808,967 

    

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR   3,126,093 2,894,151 

    

Profit attributable to: 

Owners of the parent 3,126,093 2,894,151 

    

         All amounts relate to continuing operations. 
 

 



 

 The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,126,093 2,894,151 

 

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  

 

3,126,093 

 

2,894,151 

   

 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

Owners of the parent 3,126,093 2,894,151 

   



1\lark~Jns ('hanna lJ.K. l.irnilt·d IRcl.!islcrcd number: 05467:;<)7) 

Consulida cd 8alance Shl~CI 
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FIXED ASSETS 
1 ntangible assets 
Tangible assets 
Investments 

10 
II 
12 
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! r t 

5.744.701 5.:9'1.755 
3.254.677 3.0·12,155 

S.Q99J7S 8.6-11.910 

12.38":.578 11.095.6S9 
8.201,128 6.507.':-65 
:D::!S.64: 2.:!2c).~ ,'I 

2:!.914.Q54 19.83.3 ..• -1 

15.928.030 15.61 ~.17:! 

(1.')86.924 ";.2. il.:9f) 

1~.Q86.30:! 12.860.209 

IO~.488 102.488 

15.883,814 12.757.721 

ci rUU::\T A '. ETS 
rocks 

Debtors 
('a,1l in hand & ;11 bonk 

13 
14 

CREOITOH . 
. vmounts !alling due withiu one year !;; 

SET Ct'RRE:-:T ,\ SET 

TOT \L .\S:£T LE Cl·RREYf 
LlASI LITlE 

PRO\ 1'10. FOR LlABILITIE 17 

:-tET.\ ETS 

C:\I'ITt\L '\1'\0 rU:SER\'£S 
Called up share capital 
Retained earnings 

8.596,9.11 
7.286.:m 

8.596,9-11 
·1.IG0.780 

IS 

15.883.8 I·' Il.iS7.721 

1'111.: Ilnnncinl statements were approved by the Beard of Directors 011 
its behalf by: 

............. " and \\<:r~ ,igllcd 011 

The notes form pan of these financial statements 
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CAPITAL AJ\'D RESEfn'ES 
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18 
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2019 ::!OIS 
£ £ .. £ 

::0.326.51·1 

20 . .126.51-1 

5.189.8-11 

(5.158,18·1) (5.15 .. :),8-11 

1'.168.330 15J 1.630 

8.5%.941 
6.571,::8') 

8.596.')4 I 
11.5 - 4.6S'; 

15,168.33U 15.171,630 

(3.300) ( lli.755) 

The financial statements han: been prepared in accordance \\ ith II e pro\ isious of Part 15 of the Companies : ~I 2" i, 

relating to small companies. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 Called up 

 share  Retained  Total 

 capital  earnings  equity 

 £ £ £ 

 

Balance at 1 April 2017 8,596,941 1,266,629 9,863,570 

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 2,894,151 2,894,151 

      

Balance at 31 March 2018 8,596,941 4,160,780 12,757,721 

      

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 3,126,093 3,126,093 

      

Balance at 31 March 2019 8,596,941 7,286,873 15,883,814 

      



 

 The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Company Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 Called up 

 share  Retained  Total 

 capital  earnings  equity 

 £ £ £ 

 

Balance at 1 April 2017 8,596,941 6,593,444 15,190,385 

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - (18,755) (18,755) 

      

Balance at 31 March 2018 8,596,941 6,574,689 15,171,630 

      

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - (3,300) (3,300) 

      

Balance at 31 March 2019 8,596,941 6,571,389 15,168,330 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. The 

company's registered number and registered office address can be found on the General Information page.  

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 Basis of preparing the financial statements 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The 

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Companies Act 2006. The 

financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.  

 

 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standards 

applicable in UK and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The 

financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary 

amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies 

adopted are set out below. 

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own profit and loss 

account and related notes. The company's loss for the year was £3,300 (2018- £18,755 loss). 

 

 Basis for consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited and all of its 

subsidiaries (i.e. entities that Group controls through its power to govern the financial and operating policies so 

as to obtain economic benefits). Subsidiaries acquired during the year are consolidated using the purchase 

method. Their results are incorporated from the date that control passes. All financial statements are made up to 

31 March 2019. 

 

All intra group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies are 

eliminated on consolidation. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an 

impairment of the asset transferred. 

 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting 

policies used into line with those used by other members of the Group. 

 

The cost of a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date of the assets given, equity instruments 

issued, and liabilities incurred and assumed, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. The 

excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill. 

 

 Going concern 

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company 

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the directors 

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing financial statements. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

 Turnover 

Turnover comprises revenue recognized by company in respect of goods supplied during the year, exclusive of 

Value Added Taxes and trade discounts based on the date goods are dispatched. 

 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have 

passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of goods), the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is 

probable that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to the entity and the costs incurred 

or to be incurred in respect of transactions can be measured reliably. 

 

Intangible fixed assets - goodwill 

 

Goodwill is provided as the difference between amounts paid on the acquisition of a business and the fair value 

of the identifiable assets and liabilities. It is amortized to the profit and loss account over its estimated economic 

life of 20 years. 

 

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill 

 

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognized at cost and are subsequently measured at 

cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired on business 

combinations are recognized separately from goodwill at acquisition date if the fair value can be measured 

reliably. 

 

Amortization is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of the assets less their residual values over 

their useful lives on the following basis 

 

Patents                      -  10% Straight Line   

Prescription product licenses -  5% Straight Line   

 

Tangible fixed assets 

 

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 

depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation. Depreciation is not charged on free hold 

land. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation less estimated residual value 

of each assets over its expected useful life, as follows; 

 

Freehold Building           - 2% straight 

Plant and machinery         - 20% reducing method 

Fixtures and Fittings         - 25% reducing balance 

 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and 

the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss. 

 

Impairment of Fixed Asset 

 

At each reporting end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment 

loss (if any). 

 

Where it is not possible to estimate recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the 

recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as a 

single asset. Any goodwill included in the carrying amount of the investment is not tested separately for 

impairment. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discontinued to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 

of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 

the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

 

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 

amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease. 

 

Stocks 

 

Stocks are stated at lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost comprises 

direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in 

bringing the stocks to their present location and condition. 

 

Stocks held for distribution at no or nominal consideration are measured at cost, adjusted where applicable for 

any loss of service potential. 

 

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of stocks over 

its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognized as an impairment loss in profit or loss. 

Reversals of impairment losses are also recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 

within borrowings in current liabilities. 

 

Financial instruments 

 

The group has elected to apply the provisions of section 11 "Basic Financial Instruments" and section 12 "other 

Financial Instruments Issues" of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

 

Financial instruments are recognized in company's statement of financial position when the group became party 

to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amount presented in the financial statements, when there is 

a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to 

realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Basic Financial Assets 

Basic financial assets which include trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, are initially measured 

at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at 

present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. 

 

Other Financial Assets 

Other financial assets including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are 

subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss, except that 

investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured reliably 

are measured at cost less impairment. 

 

Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active 

market are classified as "loans and receivables". Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 

impairment at each reporting end date. 

 

Financial Assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 

accrued after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If 

an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between carrying amount and the present value of 

estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognized 

in profit or loss. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Asset 

Financial assets are derecognized only when contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire or are 

settled, or when the group transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risk and reward of ownership to 

another entity, or if some of significant risk and rewards of ownership are retained but control of asset has 

transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. 

 

Classification of Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substances of the contractual 

arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the group after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Basic Financial Liabilities 

Basic financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies 

and preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognized at transaction price unless the 

arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of 

future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised 

cost, using effective interest rate method. 

 

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year 

or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at transaction 

price and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance to the contractual 

arrangement entered into. An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the asset of the 

company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Liability 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the group's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or 

cancelled. 

 

Equity instruments 

 

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognized as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of 

the group. 

 

Taxation 

 The tax expense represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as 

reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income and expenses that are taxable or 

deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's liability 

for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end 

date. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 

Deferred Tax   

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all timing differences and deferred tax asset is recognized to the 

extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liability or other future 

taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the timing differences arises from goodwill or 

from initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the 

accounting profits. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or 

the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in profit and loss account, except when it relates to items 

charged or credited directly to equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets 

and liability are offset if, and only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 

and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority. 

 

Employee benefits 

The cost of short term employee benefits is recognized as a liability and an expense, unless those cost are 

required to be recognized as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets. 

The costs of any unused holiday entitlement is recognized in the period in which the employee's services are 

received. Termination benefits are recognized immediately as an expense when the group is demonstrably 

committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits. 

 

Retirement Benefits 

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

 

Leases 

Rentals payables under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to income on a 

straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

 

Foreign Exchange 

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the dates 

of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign 

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains or losses arising on translation 

are included in the profit and loss account for the period. 

 

Judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 In the application of the company's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, 

estimated and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 

other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors 

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision effects only that period, or in the 

period of revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

Critical Judgements 

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) had the most significant effect on amount 

recognized in the financial statements. 

 

Amortization of Product Licenses 

The annual amortization charge for intangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated lives and residual 

values of assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed annually. These reviews require an 

estimation of how long each license is expected to be used based on expected sales of those licensed products. 

See note 9 for the carrying amount of the intangible assets and note 1 on Accounting Policies for the useful 

economic lives for each class of assets. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

3. TURNOVER 

 

An analysis of company's turnover is as follows:  2019 2018 

    £    £ 

Turnover 
Sale of goods  44,322,262 39,398,419 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Other significant revenue 

Interest income  5,027    1,664 

 

The analysis of turnover by geographical markets has been omitted as the directors consider that this would be 

prejudicial to the interests of the group. 

 

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 

 

The average number of employees (including directors) employed by the company during the year was as 

follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

 

Production  142 142 

Sales and Administration         22  18 

 

Their aggregate remuneration comprised of: 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Wages and salaries  4,251,733 4,097,641 

Social security costs  353,193 353,406 

Other pension costs  132,892 133,599 

 

During the year, no director (2018-none) of Marksans Pharma U.K. Limtied received any emoluments from 

Marksans Pharma U.K.Limited  or any of its subsidiaries 

 

During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to no directors (2018-none) of Marksans Pharma 

U.K.Limited in respect of defined contribution pension schemes. 

 

5. OPERATING PROFIT 

 

The operating profit is stated after charging/ (crediting): 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Depreciation - owned assets  304,532 215,497 

Amortisation of intangible assets  585,685 555,425 

Foreign exchange differences  (8,343) (687) 

 

 

6. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

 

Fees payable to the company's auditors 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

For audit services 
Audit of the financial statements of the group and company  4,000 4,000 

Audit of the company's subsidiaries  18,000 18,000 

For other services  2,000 2,000 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

7. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Bank Interest on loans and Overdraft  168,409 225,181 

   

 168,409 225,181 

   

 

8. TAXATION 

 

Analysis of the tax credit 

The tax credit on the profit/(loss) for the year was as follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Current tax: 

UK corporation tax  803,275 808,967 

 

Tax on profit/ (loss)  803,275 808,967 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Current tax 

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period  - 808,967 

 

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit per the profit and Loss account 

as follows: 

  

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Profit before Taxation on continued operations  3,929,368 3,703,118 

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by standard  

Rate of corporation tax of 19% (2018-19%)                 746,580        

- 

 703,592 

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit  31,681 14,448 

Unutilised tax losses  - - 

Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax allowances  - - 

Amortisation on assets not qualifying for tax allowances  54,312 54,312 

Difference of Capital allowances and depreciation   (29,298) 36,615 

Other tax adjustment             -             - 

Tax Expense for the year         803,275 808,967 

 

 

9. INDIVIDUAL INCOME STATEMENT 

 

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Income Statement of the parent company is not 

presented as part of these financial statements.  
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 

 Group 

 Patents 

 and  Development 

 Goodwill  licences  costs  Totals 

 £ £ £ £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 5,717,140 56,450 5,165,350 10,938,940 

 Additions - 12,432 718,199 730,631 

        

 At 31 March 2019 5,717,140 68,882 5,883,549 11,669,571 

        

 AMORTISATION 

 At 1 April 2018 2,891,967 39,988 2,407,230 5,339,185 

 Amortisation for year  - 5,651 580,034 585,685 

        

 At 31 March 2019 2,891,967 45,639 2,987,264 5,924,870 

        

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 2,825,173 23,243 2,896,285 5,744,701 

        

 At 31 March 2018 2,825,173 16,462 2,758,120 5,599,755 

        

 

11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 

 Group 

 Fixtures 

 Freehold  Plant and  and 

 property  machinery  fittings  Totals 

 £ £ £ £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 2,371,743 4,487,338 18,151 6,877,232 

 Additions - 355,586 164,766 520,352 

 Disposal - (206,274) - (206,274) 

        

 At 31 March 2019 2,371,743 4,636,650 182,917 7,191,310 

        

 DEPRECIATION 

 At 1 April 2018 217,656 3,605,568 11,853 3,835,077 

 Charge for year  53,984 213,965 36,583 304,532 

 Eliminated on disposal - (202,976) - (202,976) 

        

 At 31 March 2019 271,640 3,616,557 48,436 3,936,633 

        

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 2,100,103 1,020,093 134,481 3,254,677 

        

 At 31 March 2018 2,154,087 881,770 6,298 3,042,155 

        

 

12. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 

 

 Notes Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Investments in Subsidiaries   - -  20,326,514 20,326,514 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

12. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 

 

 Group 

 

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are as follows: 

 

Name of undertaking and country of   Nature of  Class of  % Held 

incorporation of residency  business shareholding Direct Indirect 

 

 

Marksans Holdings Limited 

 England and 

Wales 

Holding 

Company 

 

Ordinary 

 

100 

 

 

 

Bell, Sons &Co (Druggists ) 

Limited 

 England and 

Wales 

 

Pharmaceuticals 

 

Ordinary 

 

- 

 

100 

 

 

Relonchem Limited 

 England and 

Wales 

 

Pharmaceuticals 

 

Ordinary 

 

100 

 

- 

 

13. STOCKS 

 

 Notes Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Raw materials and consumables  1,341,392   1,298,749 - - 

 

Finished goods and goods for resale   11,043,186 9,797,940 - - 

 

 12,384,578 11,096,689 - - 

 

14. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 

 Group  Company 

 2019  2018  2019  2018 

 £ £ £ £ 

 Trade debtors 7,637,892 6,366,337 - - 

 Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 34,957 34,957 

 Other debtors 49,496 56,031 - - 

 Prepayments and accrued income 514,340 85,197 - - 

       

 8,201,728 6,507,565 34,957 34,957 

       

 

15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 

 Group  Company 

 2019  2018  2019  2018 

 £ £ £ £ 

 Trade creditors 3,111,662 2,668,219 - - 

 Loans and Overdraft 2,509,082 3,680,426 - - 

 Amounts owed to group undertakings 8,095,977 7,520,723 5,185,601 5,178,061 

 Corporation tax payable 413,621 800,521 - - 

 Social security and other taxes  294,722 244,068 - - 

 Other creditors 34,480 12,120 - - 

 Accruals and deferred income 1,468,486 689,095 7,540 11,780 

        

 15,928,030 15,615,172 5,193,141 5,189,841 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

 Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Carrying amount of financial assets  7,687,388 6,422,368 34,957 34,957 

Debt instruments measured at amortised 

costs 

  

 

 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised costs  15,219,687 14,570,583 5,193,141 5,189,841 

 

17. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 

 

 Notes Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Deferred tax liabilities                        102,488   102,488  - - 

 

Payable within one year   102,488  102,488  - - 

 

 

 

18. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

 

       Ordinary share capital, issued and fully paid: 

 Number: Class: Nominal 2019  2018 

 value: £ £ 

 8,596,941 Ordinary share capital £1 8,596,941 8,596,941 

 

 

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the group or company has legal enforceable right to do so. 

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for the financial reporting purpose. 

 

 2019 2018 

Group  £  £  

 

Accelerated capital allowances   102,488  102,488  

 

 

The company has no deferred tax assets or liabilities. 

 

There were no deferred tax movements in the year. 

 

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Defined contribution schemes 

Charge to profit and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes  132,892 133,600 

 

A defined contribution pension scheme is operated for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme are 

held separately from those of the group in an independently administered fund. 
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Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

21. LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 

 

 Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Loans and overdrafts 
 

Bank overdrafts  2,509,082 3,680,426  - - 

 

Payable within one year  2,509,082 3,680,426  - - 

 

 

22. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 

 

Leases 

 

Operating lease payments represent rental payable in respect of property, equipment and vehicles. 

 

At 31 March 2019 the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under 

non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 

 

 Group Group Company Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

£  £  £  £  

Within one year  215,589 80,349 - - 

 

Between two and five years  1,017,591 78,826 - - 

After five years  1,731,648        - - - 

  

 

 

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

 Remuneration of key management personnel, including those who are also director, is as follow 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Aggregate compensation  461,562 567,685 

 

The company has taken exemption from disclosing related party transactions with companies under the same 

control in accordance with FRS 102-Section 33 "Related Party Disclosures" 

 

24. CASH FLOW EXEMPTION 

 

The group and company, being member of the group wherein the ultimate parent company prepares 

consolidated financial statements which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a 

cash flow statement in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102. 



 

Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

25. CONTROLLING PARTY 

 

The immediate parent undertaking is Marksans Pharma Limited, a company incorporated in India. 

Consolidated accounts are available from the Registrar of Companies, Everest 100, Marine Drive, Mumbai- 400 

002, Maharashtra. 

 

In the opinion of the directors, Marksans Pharma Limited is the company's ultimate parent Company and 

ultimate controlling party. 

 

26. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 

 

Previous year figures have been rearranged/ regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary to facilitate 

comparison with the current year figures. 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Directors' Responsibilities Statement 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

The directors are responsible for preparing annual report and financial statement in accordance with applicable law and 

regulation. 

 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statement for each financial year. Under that law the directors 

have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practices (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not 

approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of state of affairs of the 

company and of the profit or loss of the company for the period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors 

are required to: 

-  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently. 

-  Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

-  Prepare the financial statement on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will 

continue in business. 

 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and 

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for tacking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 

and other irregularities. 
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of 

Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Marksans Holdings Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 

31 March 2019 which comprise the Income Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of 

Changes in Equity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 

financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 

Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 

UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2019;  

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where:  

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period 

of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Report 

of the Directors and the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, but does not include the financial statements and our 

Report of the Auditors thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 

report in this regard.  

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements are 

prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

- the Report of the Directors has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Income Statement   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

TURNOVER - - 

   

OPERATING PROFIT and  

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  - - 

 

Tax on profit 5 - - 

   

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  - - 

   

          All amounts relate to continuing operations 
 



 

 The notes form part of these financial statements 

 

 Page 7 

Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Other Comprehensive Income   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR - - 

 

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  

 

- 

 

- 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 Called up 

 share  Retained  Share  Total 

 capital  earnings  premium  equity 

 £ £ £ £ 

 

Balance at 1 April 2017 1,000 - 1,489,874 1,489,874 

 

Changes in equity 

        

Balance at 31 March 2018 1,000 - 1,489,874 1,490,874 

        

 

Changes in equity 

        

Balance at 31 March 2019 1,000 - 1,489,874 1,490,874 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 

Marksans Holdings Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. The 

company's registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page. 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 Accounting policies 

Company information 

 

Marksans Holdings Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The register 

office is Cheshire House, Gorsey Lane, Widnes, WA8 ORP. 

 

Cash Flow Exemption 

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial 

statements which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102. 

 

 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standards 

applicable in UK and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102) and the requirement of Companies Act 2006. 

 

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary 

amounts in these financial statements are rounded in nearest pound. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principle accounting policies 

adopted are set out below. 

 

The company has taken advantage of exemption under section 400 of Companies Act 2006 not to prepare 

consolidated accounts. The financial statements present information about the company as an individual entity 

and not about its group. 

 

Marksans Holdings Limited is a Wholly subsidiary of Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited and the results of 

Marksans Pharma U.K.  Limited are included in the consolidated Financial Statement of Marksans Pharma 

U.K. Limited which are available from Companies House, Cardiff, CF 14 3UZ. 

 

 Going concern 

At the time of approving the financial statement, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company 

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the directors 

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing financial statements. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings 

in current liabilities. 

 

Fixed asset investment 

Interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. The investments are assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any impairment 

losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 

policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

 Financial instruments 

The comply elected to apply the provisions of section 11 "Basic Financial Instruments" and section 12 "other 

Financial Instruments Issues" of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognized in company's statement of financial position when the company became 

party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net 

amount presented in the financial statements. When there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 

amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the net asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. 

 

Basic Financial Assets 

Basic financial assets which include trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, are initially measured 

at transaction price including transaction cost and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at 

present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. 

 

Other financial asset 

Other financial assets including investment in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are 

subsequently carried at fair value and the change in fair value are recognize in profit or loss, except that 

investment in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values can not be measured reliably 

are measured at cost less impairment. 

 

Trade debtor, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active 

market are classified as "Loans and receivables" loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment. 

Interest is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short term receivable when the 

recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the 

amortize cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the effective expected life of 

the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 

impairment at each reporting end date. 

 

 Financial Assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 

accrued after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If 

an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between carrying amount and the present value of 

estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognized 

in profit or loss. 

 

If there is a decrease in impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, 

the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what carrying 

amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognized. The impairment reversal is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Asset 

Financial assets are derecognized only when contractual right to the cash flow from the asset expire or are 

settled, or when the company transfer the financial asset and substantially all the risk and reward of ownership 

to another entity, or if some of significant risk and rewards of ownerships are retained but control of asset has 

transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. 

 

Classification of Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substances of the contractual 

arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the company after deducting all of its liabilities. 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Basic Financial Liabilities 

Basic financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank loan, loan from fellow group companies and 

preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognized at transaction price unless the arrangement 

constitutes a financial transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of future payments 

discounted at a market rate of interest. 

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at cost, using effective interest rate method. 

 

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year 

or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at transaction 

price and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. 

 

Other Financial Liability 

Derivatives, including interest rate swap and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial 

instruments. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and 

are subsequently re measured at fair value. Changes in the fair values of derivatives are recognized in profit or 

loss in finance costs or finance income as appropriate unless hedge accounting is applied and the hedge is a cash 

flow hedge. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance to the contractual 

arrangement entered into. An equity instrument is an contract that evidences a residual interest in the asset of the 

company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Liability 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the company's contractual obligation expire or are discharged or 

cancelled. 

 

 Equity instruments 

Equity instruments issued by company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. dividend 

payable on equity instrument are recognized as liability once they are no longer at the discretion of company. 

 

3. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 

 

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was nil 

(2018: Nil). 

 

4. OPERATING PROFIT 

 

The auditor's remuneration for the year was borne by a fellow group undertaking. 

 

5. TAXATION 

 

Analysis of the tax charge 

No liability to UK corporation tax arose for the year ended 31 March 2019 nor for the year ended 31 March 

2018. 
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Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

6. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Investments in subsidiaries  1,490,874 1,490,874 

 

The company has not designed any financial assets that are not classified as financial assets as fair value through 

profit or loss. 

 

Movement in Fixed assets investments 

 

 

 

 

  Investment in  

Subsidiary 

Company 

 £ 

Cost 
At 1 April 2017 & 31 March 2018  1,490,874 

Carrying amount 
At 31 March 2019  1,490,874 

At 31 March 2018  1,490,874 

 

Subsidiaries 

These financial statements are separate company financial statements for Marksans Holdings 

Limited. 

 

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are as follows: 

 

Name of   Country of  Nature of  Class of % Held 

undertaking  Incorporation business  Shareholding Direct indirect 

 

Bell, Sons & Co (Druggists) Limited  England and Pharmaceutical Ordinary 100.00  

 Wales 

 

The aggregate capital and reserve and the result for the year of the subsidiaries noted above was as follow: 

 

Name of undertaking     Capital and  

 Profit/(Loss) Reserve 

£  £  

Bell, Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited   535,639  5,574,647 

 

 

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

 

 

 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 

 Number: Class: Nominal 2019  2018 

 value: £ £ 

 1,000 Ordinary Share Capital £1 1,000 1,000 

   



 

Marksans Holdings Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

8. RESERVES 

 Retained  Share 

 earnings  premium  Totals 

 £ £ £ 

 

 At 1 April 2018 - 1,489,874 1,489,874 

 Profit for the year  - -  

      

 At 31 March 2019 - 1,489,874 1,489,874 

      

 

9. CONTROLLING PARTY 

 

The immediate parent undertaking is Marksans Pharma U.K. Limited, a company registered in England and 

Wales. 

 

In the opinion of directors, Marksans Pharma Limited is the company's ultimate parent company and ultimate 

controlling party. 

 

The parent undertaking of the smallest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared in Marksans Pharma 

U.K. Limited. Consolidated accounts are available from Companies House, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ. 

 

The parent undertaking of the largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is Marksans Pharma 

Limited, a company incorporated in India. Consolidated accounts are available from the Registrar of 

Companies, Everest 100, Marine Drive, Mumbai-400 002, Maharashtra. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Company Information 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 DIRECTORS: Mr. S Jayanna 
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 SECRETARY: Mrs G Jacks  

 

 

 

 

 

 REGISTERED OFFICE: Gifford House 

 Slaidburn Crescent 

 Southport 

 Merseyside 

 PR9 9AL 

 

 

 

 

 

 REGISTERED NUMBER: 00351951 (England and Wales) 

 

 

 

 

 

 AUDITORS: PBG Associates Limited 

  Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 

 65 Delamere Road 

 Hayes, Middx 

 UB4 0NN 



Bel .S,ms.\: Co. Dru!!!!ists\ Limih.:d 

I !e~kRt'~ 
iiJr lit: Ycar Ended 31 ~l:1.rdl :?U!9 

The directors present the stralegic report and financial statcmcru for th..:: ear <':lIlkJ 31 xtarch :?I) I 'I. 

FA It REVIEW OF BUSI1'iE 'S 
The directors consider the result for the period to be satisfactory. During the period sales increased from £ 18,021.-1-19 to 
£22 119,80 I and the profit on ordinary activities before taxation was £ 641,496 (20 IS: £133,(14). The directors expect 
turn ver and the pro lit Oil ordinary activities to increase ill the forthcoming year. 

13c1l5 manufactures licensed products - both as own branded products and. for certain customers, in 0\\"11 label from 
tog ther with a range of unlicensed products. The company owns :J state-of-the-art manufa ,turing facility in Southport 
and '5 an established manufacturer of over 200 OTC' pharmaceuticals havin]; full approval of'the L.'K ~ IlIlt-\. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Report of the Directors 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

The directors present their annual report and financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principle activity of the company continued to be that of Manufacturer and sale of pharmaceuticals. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors who holds office during the year and upto the date of signature of financial statement were as follow: 

 

Mr. M Saldanha 

Mr. J Sharma 

Mrs. S Saldanha 

Mr. S Jayanna 

Mr. R D Williams (Resigned 27th March 2019) 

 

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS 

The results for the year are set out on page 7. 

 

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 

 

AUDITORS 

The auditors, PBG Associates Ltd, will be proposed for re appointment at the forth coming Annual General Meeting. 

 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

The directors are responsible for preparing annual report and financial statement in accordance with applicable law and 

regulation. 

 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statement for each financial year. Under that law the directors 

have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practices (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not 

approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of state of affairs of the 

company and of the profit or loss of the company for the period.in preparing these financial statements, the directors are 

required to: 

-  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently. 

-  Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

-  Prepare the financial statement on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will 

continue in business. 

 

 The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and 

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with companies act 2006. They are also responsible for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for tacking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 

and other irregularities. 



Ii ·II.Solls &. lO.lDru!!!.!ists Limited 

R lort (If the Directors 
Ii r the Year Elided 31 March 20 J 9 

S' ATDIE:"T OF DISCLO 'UJ~E TO AUOITOnS 
s Iar as each person who "as a director at the dale of approving this report is aware. there is IlO relevant :lUJil 
infonnation of which the company's auditors arc unaware. Addhionally. the directors illl.!i, idual!} have I;.lk.:n all the 
n .essarv steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit 
in ormation and to establish that the company's auditors arc aware of that information, 

I). tc: 2'" \.lJ). 2019 
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of 

Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 

31 March 2019 which comprise the Income Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 

Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard 

applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for the year then 

ended;  

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where:  

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period 

of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Strategic 

Report and the Report of the Directors, but does not include the financial statements and our Report of the Auditors 

thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 

report in this regard.  

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

- the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 

requirements.  





 

 The notes form part of these financial statements 

 

 Page 7 

Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Income Statement   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019 2018 

 Notes £ £ £ £ 

 

TURNOVER 3 22,119,801 18,021,449 

 

Cost of sales 18,769,081 15,389,477 

    

GROSS PROFIT 3,350,720 2,631,972 

 

Distribution costs 1,191,833 1,240,121 

Administrative expenses 1,368,885 1,175,762 

   2,560,718    2,415,883 

    

 790,002 216,089 

 

Other operating income 5,027 72,138 

    

OPERATING PROFIT 5 795,029 288,227 

 

 

Interest payable and similar expenses  6 153,533 154,313 

    

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  641,496 133,914 

 

Tax on profit 7 105,857 24,824 

    

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  535,639 109,090 

    

 
          All amounts relate to continuing operations. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Other Comprehensive Income   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 535,639 109,090 

 

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  

 

535,639 

 

109,090 

   



Reaisiered number: 00351951 

tatemenl of Financiul Position 
I 1'.1arch 2019 

NOles 
2019 20lS 

t. t: s £. 
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D,565.7S7 IO,7X2.60,) 
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2.533.696 2.089.177 

5,677.135 5,141,";<;6 

101.438 10:,';S3 

5.574.647 5.039.008 
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8 
') 

'URRENT ASSETS 
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10 
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lABILITIES 
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:.WITAL ..\,'\0 HESEltYES 
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! ~ ·1.5:;0.621 ;.q~-H.l)~:: 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 Called up 

 share  Retained  Revaluation  Total 

 capital  earnings  reserve  equity 

 £ £ £ £ 

 

Balance at 1 April 2017 6,334 3,885,892 1,037,692 4,929,918 

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 109,090 - 109,090 

        

Balance at 31 March 2018 6,334 3,994,982 1,037,692 5,039,008 

        

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 535,639 - 535,639 

        

Balance at 31 March 2019 6,334 4,530,621 1,037,692 5,574,647 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 

Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. 

The company's registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page.  

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standards 

applicable in UK and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102) and the requirement of Companies Act 2006. 

 

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary 

amounts in these financial statements are rounded in nearest pound. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principle accounting policies 

adopted are set out below. 

 

 Going concern 

At the time of approving the financial statement, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company 

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the directors 

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing financial statements. 

 

 Turnover 

Turnover compromises revenue recognized by company in respect of goods supplied during the year, exclusive 

of Value Added Taxes and trade discount based on the date they are dispatched. 

 

Revenue from sale of goods to be recognized when significant risk and reward of ownerships of goods have 

passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of goods), the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is 

probable that the economic benefit associated with the transactions will flow to the entity and the cost incurred 

or to be incurred in respect of transactions can be measured reliably. 

 

 Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill 

Intangible assets acquired separately from business are recognized at cost and are subsequently measured at cost 

less accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired in business combinations are recognized 

separately from goodwill at acquisition date if the fair value can be measured reliably. 

Amortization is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of the assets less their residual values over 

their useful lives on the following basis 

 

Product licence - 5% Straight Line 

 

 Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 

depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation. Depreciation is not charged on Free hold 

land. depreciation provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation less estimated residual value of 

each assets over its expected useful life, as follow; 

Freehold Building      2% cost or valuation 

Plant and machinery   20% reducing method 

 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of a asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceed and 

carrying value of the asset, and is credited and charged to profit or loss. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

  Impairment of Fixed Asset 
 At each reporting end date, the company review the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to  

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment 

loss (if any). 

 

Whether it is not possible to estimate recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimate the 

recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Recoverable amount is higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discontinued at their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset for which estimates of 

future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 

the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

 

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 

amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decreases. 

 

 Stocks 

Stocks are stated at lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete sell. Cost comprises direct 

materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the 

stock to their present location and condition. 

 

stocks held for distribution at no or nominal consideration are measured at cost, adjusted where applicable for 

any loss of service potential. 

 

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of carrying amount of stocks over its 

estimated selling price less cost to complete and sell is recognized as an impairment loss in profit or loss. 

Reversals of impairment losses are also recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 

within borrowings in current liabilities. 

 

Cash Flow Exemption 

 

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial 

statements which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

 Financial instruments 

The comply elected to apply the provisions of section 11 "Basic Financial Instruments" and section 12 "other 

Financial Instruments Issues" of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognized in company's statement of financial position when the company became 

party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amount presented in the financial statements. When there 

is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 

to realize the net asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Basic Financial Assets 

Basic financial assets which include trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, are initially measured 

at transaction price including transaction cost and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at 

present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. 

Trade debtor, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active 

market are classified as "Loans and receivables" loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment. 

 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 

impairment at each reporting end date. 

 

Financial Assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 

accrued after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If 

an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between carrying amount and the present value of 

estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognized 

in profit or loss. 

 

If there is a decrease in impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, 

the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what carrying 

amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognized. The impairment reversal is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Asset 

Financial assets are derecognized only when contractual right to the cash flow from the asset expire or are 

settled, or when the company transfer the financial asset and substantially all the risk and reward of ownership 

to another entity, or if some of significant risk and rewards of ownerships are retained but control of asset has 

transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. 

 

Classification of Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substances of the contractual 

arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Basic Financial Liabilities 

Basic financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank loan, loan from fellow group companies and 

preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognized at transaction price unless the arrangement 

constitutes a financial transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of future payments 

discounted at a market rate of interest. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at cost, using effective interest 

rate method. 

 

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year 

or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at transaction 

price and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance to the contractual 

arrangement entered into. An equity instrument is an contract that evidences a residual interest in the asset of the 

company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Derecognition of Financial Liability 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the company's contractual obligation expire or are discharged or 

cancelled. 

 

 Equity instruments 

Equity instruments issued by company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. dividend 

payable on equity instrument are recognized as liability once they are no longer at the discretion of company. 

 

 Employee benefits 

The cost of short term employee benefits is recognized as a liability and an expense, unless those cost are 

required to be recognized as part of the cost of stock or fixed asset.Termination benefit are recognized 

immediately as an expense when company is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an 

employee or to provide termination benefits. 

 

 Retirement benefits 

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as the fall due. 

 

 Leases 

Rentals payables under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to income on a 

straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed. 

 

 Foreign exchange 

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the dates 

of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign 

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains or losses arising on translation 

are included in the profit and loss account for the period. 

 

Taxation 

The tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as 

reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income and expenses that are taxable or 

deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company's 

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

reporting end date. 

 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all timing differences and deferred tax asset is recognized to the 

extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liability or other future 

taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the timing differences arises from goodwill or 

from initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the 

accounting profits. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or 

the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged of credited in profit and loss account, except when it relates to items 

charged or credited directly to equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets 

and liability are offset when the company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 

liabilities and the deferred tax asset and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

3. TURNOVER 

 

An analysis of company's turnover is as follows: 

 

 

 2019 2018 

    £  £  

Turnover 
Sale of goods  22,119,801 18,021,449 

 

 

 2019 2017  

Other significant revenue  £  £  

Interest income  5,027 1,664 

Others  - 70,474 

 

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 

 

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was: 

 

 2019 2018 

 Number Number 

Production  130 133 

Sales and Administration       22      18 

Total  152 148 

 

 

Their aggregate remuneration comprised 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Wages and Salaries   3,555,383 3,414,461 

Social Security Cost  283,798 277,053 

Other Pension Cost      99,862 104,366 

Total  3,939,043 3,795,880 

 

Directors Remuneration 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Remuneration for qualifying services  92,756 86,870 

Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes     6,959 6,959 

Total    99,715 93,829 

     

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes 

amounted to 1(2018-1) 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

5. OPERATING PROFIT 

 

The operating profit is stated after charging/ (crediting): 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Other operating leases  69,815 65,649 

Depreciation - owned assets  267,949 206,216 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets  5,402 6,374 

Patents and licences amortisation  5,651 5,651 

Cost of stock recognised as an expenses  13,673,741 10,771,312 

Auditors' remuneration: 

for audit services   8,000 8,000 

for other services  1000 1,000 

Foreign exchange differences  (8,343) (687) 

 

 

6. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Bank overdraft interest payable 153,533 153,142 

 Bank loan interest payable - 1,171 

   

 153,533 154,313 

   

 

7. TAXATION 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Current Tax 

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period          105,857 24,824 

 - 

 

The charges for the year can be reconciled to the profit and loss account as follow: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Profit before taxation on continued operations          641,496 133,914 

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by standard rate of 

corporation tax of 19% (2018-19%) 

          

        121,884   

 

 

25,444 

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit   1,211 

Group relief            (627) (3,563) 

Difference of Capital allowances and depreciation          (16,003) 1,732 

Other tax adjustments  603              - 

                                                                                                         105,857 24,824 

Tax expenses for the year   - 



 

 Page 17 continued... 

Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 Patents 

 and 

 licences 

 £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 56,450 

 Additions 12,432 

  

 At 31 March 2019 68,882 

  

 AMORTISATION 

 At 1 April 2018 39,988 

 Amortisation for year  5,651 

  

 At 31 March 2019 45,639 

  

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 23,243 

  

 At 31 March 2018 16,462 

  

 

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 Freehold  Plant and 

 property  machinery  Totals 

 £ £ £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 2,371,743 4,487,338 6,859,081 

 Additions - 355,586 355,586 

 Disposal - (206,274) (206,274) 

      

 At 31 March 2019 2,371,743 4,636,650 7,008,393 

      

 DEPRECIATION 

 At 1 April 2018 217,656 3,605,568 3,823,224 

 Charge for year  53,984 213,965 267,949 

 Eliminated on disposal - (202,976) (202,976) 

      

 At 31 March 2019 271,640 3,616,557 3,888,197 

      

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 2,100,103 1,020,093 3,120,196 

      

 At 31 March 2018 2,154,087 881,770 3,035,857 

      

 

Comparable historical cost for the land and building included at valuation: 

 

 2019 2018 

Cost  1,796,527 1,796,527 

Accumulated depreciation     827,221    791,291 

 

Carrying value  969,306 1,005,236 

 

Freehold land with a valuation of £550,000 (2018: £550,000) and a cost of £ 268,500 (2018: £ 268,500) has not 

been depreciated. The Property was externally valued on 31st march 2013 at £2,300,000 by Edison’s Chartered 

Surveyors on an open market basis. The Directors are not aware of any material changes in value subsequently. 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

10. STOCKS 

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Stocks of Raw materials and consumables  1,341,392 1,298,749 

 Finished goods 5,987,309 3,874,633 

   

 7,328,701 5,173,382 

   

 

11. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Trade debtors 3,250,659 3,014,956 

 Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,577,573 1,584,196 

 Prepayments and accrued income 323,976 75,155 

   

 5,152,208 4,674,307 

   

 

12. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Trade creditors 2,509,364 2,049,422 

 Loans and overdrafts 2,327,460 2,987,651 

 Amounts owed to group undertakings 5,290,450 3,011,814 

 Corporate tax payable 3,679 20,646 

 Social security and other taxes  266,668 183,036 

 Other creditors 34,480 12,120 

 Accruals and deferred income 599,990 428,743 

    

 11,032,091 8,693,432 

    

 

13. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 

 

     2019 2018 

£  £  

Deferred tax (Accelerated Capital Allowances)  102,488 102,488 

 

These are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the company and there were no 

movements in the year. 

 

 

14. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

 

 

 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 

 Number: Class: Nominal 2019  2018 

 value: £ £ 

 6,334 Ordinary £1 6,334 6,334 
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Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

15. RESERVES 

 Retained  Revaluation 

 earnings  reserve  Totals 

 £ £ £ 

 

 At 1 April 2018 3,994,982 1,037,692 5,032,674 

 Profit for the year  535,639 535,639 

      

 At 31 March 2019 4,530,621 1,037,692 5,568,313 

      

 

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Carrying amount of financial assets 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost  4,828,232 4,599,152 

 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost  10,761,744 8,489,750 

 

 

 

17. LOANS 

 

An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below: 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Amounts falling due within one year or on demand: 

Bank overdrafts  2,327,460 2,987,651 

 

The company's overdraft facility is secured on an all asset debenture charge creating a first charge over all free 

hold property and other assets within the company together with a corporate guarantee from the ultimate parent 

company, Marksans Pharma Limited, for the whole credit facility. 

 

18. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 

 

Leases 

 

At 31 March 2019 the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under 

non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

 

Within one year 

             

70,579 

 

80,182 

Between two and five years   78,203 78,826 

 

 

19. PENSION COMMITMENTS 

 

Defined contribution schemes 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the 

scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund. 

 

The charge to profit and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was £ 99,862 (2018-£ 104,367) 



 

Bell,Sons & Co.(Druggists) Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

 

Remuneration of key management personnel 

Remuneration of key management personnel, including those who are also director, is as follow 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Aggregate compensation  270,252 245,311 

  

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial statements 

which are publicly available. Accordingly, the Company has taken the exemption from disclosing related party 

transactions with companies under the same control in accordance with FRS 102-Section 33 "Related Party 

Disclosures" 

 

21. CONTROLLING PARTY 

 

The immediate parent undertaking is Marksans Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales. 

The company is controlled by Marksans Pharma U.K.Limited by virtue of its 100% ownership of Marksans 

Holdings Limited. 

 

The parent undertaking of smallest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is Marksans Pharma U.K. 

Limited. Consolidated accounts are available from Companies House, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.The parent undertaking of 

largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is Marksans Pharma Limited, a company incorporated in 

India. Consolidated accounts are available from the registrar of Companies, Everest 100, Marine Drive, Mumbai- 

400 002, Maharashtra. 

 

In the opinion of the directors, Marksans Pharma Limited is the company's ultimate parent company and ultimate 

controlling party. 

 

22. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 

 

Previous year figures have been rearranged/ regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary to facilitate 

comparison with the current year figures. 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Report of the Directors 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

The directors present their annual report and financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principle activity of the company continued to be that of development, registration and distribution of generic 

prescription pharmaceuticals in the UK. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors who holds office during the year and upto the date of signature of financial statement were as follow: 

 

Mr. M Saldanha  

Mr. J Sharma 

Mr. S Jayanna 

Mrs. S Saldanha 

Mr R D Williams (Resigned on 27th March 2019) 

 

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS 

The results for the year are set out on page 7. 

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 

 

AUDITORS 

The auditors, PBG Associates Ltd, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forth coming Annual General meeting. 

  

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

The directors are responsible for preparing annual report and financial statement in accordance with applicable law and 

regulation. 

 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statement for each financial year. Under that law the directors 

have elected to prepare the financial statement in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practices (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not 

approve the financial statement unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of state of affairs of the 

company and of the profit or loss of the company for the period.in preparing these financial statements, the directors are 

required to: 

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently. 

- Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

- Prepare the financial statement on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will 

continue in business. 

 

 The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and 

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with companies act 2006. They are also responsible for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for tacking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 

and other irregularities. 
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of 

Relonchem Limited 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Relonchem Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 31 March 2019 

which comprise the Income Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity 

and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 

including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 

Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for the year then 

ended;  

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where:  

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period 

of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Strategic 

Report and the Report of the Directors, but does not include the financial statements and our Report of the Auditors 

thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 

report in this regard.  

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

- the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 

requirements.  
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Income Statement   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

TURNOVER 2 23,828,455 24,096,505 

 

Cost of sales 18,542,766 18,731,137 

    

GROSS PROFIT 5,285,689 5,365,368 

 

Administrative expenses 1,558,004 1,403,006 

    

 3,727,685 3,962,362 

 

Other operating income 439 35,974 

    

OPERATING PROFIT 4 3,728,124 3,998,336 

 

 

Interest payable and similar expenses  6 14,876 70,868 

    

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  3,713,248 3,927,468 

 

Tax on profit 7 697,418 784,143 

    

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  3,015,830 3,143,325 

    

 

          All amounts relate to continuing operations 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Other Comprehensive Income   

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 2019  2018 

 Notes £ £ 

 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,015,830 3,143,325 

 

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  

 

3,015,830 

 

3,143,325 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity  

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

 Called up 

 share  Retained  Share  Total 

 capital  earnings  premium  equity 

 £ £ £ £ 

 

Balance at 1 April 2017 2,300 189,189 6,909,121 7,100,610 

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 3,143,325 - 3,143,325 

        

Balance at 31 March 2018 2,300 3,332,514 6,909,121 10,243,935 

        

 

Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 3,015,830 - 3,015,830 

        

Balance at 31 March 2019 2,300 6,348,344 6,909,121 13,259,765 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 Accounting policies 

Company information 

 

Relonchem Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The register office is 27 

Old Gloucester Street, London, WC1 3XX 

 

 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standards 

applicable in UK and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102) and the requirement of Companies Act 2006. 

 

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary 

amounts in these financial statements are rounded in nearest pound. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principle accounting policies 

adopted are set out below. 

 

 Going concern 

At the time of approving the financial statement, the directors have a reasonable explanation that the company 

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the directors 

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing financial statements. 

 

 Turnover 

Turnover compromise revenue recognized by company in respect of goods supplied during the year, exclusive 

of Value Added Taxes and trade discount based on the date they are dispatched. 

 

Revenue from sale of goods to be recognized when significant risk and reward of ownerships of goods have 

passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of goods), the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is 

probable that the economic benefit associated with the transactions will flow to the entity and the cost incurred 

or to be incurred in respect of transactions can be measured reliably. 

 

 Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill 

Intangible assets acquired separately from business are recognized at cost and are subsequently measured at cost 

less accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired in business combinations are recognized 

separately from goodwill at acquisition date if the fair value can be measured reliably. 

 

Amortization is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of the assets less their residual values over 

their useful lives on the following basis; 

 

Product licenses - 5% Straight Line 

 

  Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 

depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of asset less their residual values over their 

useful lives on the following basis; 

Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment   25% reducing balances 

 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of a fixed assets is determined as the difference between the sale proceed 

and carrying value of the asset, and is credited and charged to profit or loss. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



 

  continued... 

Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

  Impairment of Fixed Assets 
At each reporting end date, the company review the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated in order to determine the extant of impairment 

loss (if any). Whether it is not possible to estimate recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company 

estimate the recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Recoverable amount is higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discontinued at their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset for which estimates of 

future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 

the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 

is recognized immediately in profit or Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decreases. 

 

 Stocks 

Stocks are stated at lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete sell. Cost comprises direct 

materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the 

stock to their present location and condition. 

 

stocks held for distribution at no or nominal consideration are measured at cost, adjusted where applicable for 

any loss of service potential. 

 

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of carrying amount of stocks over its 

estimated selling price less cost to complete and sell is recognized as an impairment loss in profit or loss. 

Reversals of impairment losses are also recognized in profit or loss. 

 

 Taxation 

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

 

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

 

Current tax is recognised at the amount of tax payable using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance 

sheet date. 

 

Timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from 

those in which they are recognised in financial statements. Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of 

the timing difference. 

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they 

will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. 

 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 

within borrowings in current liabilities. 
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  continued... 

Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

 Financial instruments 

The comply elected to apply the provisions of section 11 "Basic Financial Instruments" and section 12 "other 

Financial Instruments Issues" of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognized in company's statement of financial position when the company became 

party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amount presented in the financial statements. When there 

is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 

to realize the net asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Basic Financial Assets 

Basic financial assets which include trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, are initially measured 

at transaction price including transaction cost and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at 

present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. 

Trade debtor, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active 

market are classified as "Loans and receivables" loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment. 

 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 

impairment at each reporting end date. Financial Assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a 

result of one or more events that accrued after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future 

cash flows have been affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between carrying 

amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. 

The impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

 

If there is a decrease in impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, 

the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what carrying 

amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognized. The impairment reversal is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 

De-recognition of Financial Asset 

Financial assets are derecognized only when contractual right to the cash flow from the asset expire or are 

settled, or when the company transfer the financial asset and substantially all the risk and reward of ownership 

to another entity, or if some of significant risk and rewards of ownerships are retained but control of asset has 

transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. 

 

Classification of Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substances of the contractual 

arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Basic Financial Liabilities 

Basic financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank loan, loan from fellow group companies and 

preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognized at transaction price unless the arrangement 

constitutes a financial transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of future payments 

discounted at a market rate of interest. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at cost, using effective interest 

rate method. 

 

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year 

or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at transaction 

price and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance to the contractual 

arrangement entered into. An equity instrument is an contract that evidences a residual interest in the asset of the 

company after deducting all of its liabilities. 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 

De-recognition of Financial Liability 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the company's contractual obligation expire or are discharged or        

cancelled. 

 

 Equity instruments 

Equity instruments issued by company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. dividend 

payable on equity instrument are recognized as liability once they are no longer at the discretion of company. 

 

 Employee benefits 

The cost of short term employee benefits is recognized as a liability and an expense, unless those cost are 

required to be recognized as part of the cost of stock or fixed asset. Termination benefit are recognized 

immediately as an expense when company is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an 

employee or to provide termination benefits. 

 

Retirement Benefits 

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as the fall due. 

 

Leases 

Rentals payables under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to income on a 

straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed. 

 

Foreign Exchange 

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the dates 

of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign 

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains or losses arising on translation 

are included in the profit and loss account for the period. 

 

 Judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the company's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, 

estimated and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 

other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors 

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised where the revision effects only that period, or in 

the period of revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

Critical Judgements 

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) had the most significant effect on amount 

recognized in the financial statements. 

 

Amortization of Product Licenses 

The annual amortization charge for intangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated lives and residual 

values of assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed annually. These reviews require an 

estimation of how long each license is expected to be used based on expected sales of those licensed products. 

See note 9 for the carrying amount of the intangible assets and note 1 on Accounting Policies for the useful 

economic lives for each class of assets. 

 

2. TURNOVER 

 An analysis of the company's turnover is as follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Turnover 
Sale of goods  23,828,455 24,096,505 

   The analysis of turnover by geographical markets has been omitted as the directors consider that this would be 

prejudicial to the interest of the company's trade. 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

3. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 

 

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) emloyed by the company during the year was: 

 

 2019 2018 

 Number Number 

         12             9 

Their aggregate remuneration comprised of: 

 

Wages and salaries  696,350 683,180 

Social security costs  69,395 76,353 

Other pension costs    33,030 29,233 

 

 798,775 788,766 

 

Director's Remuneration 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Remuneration for qualifying services  190,653 257,779 

 

 

4. OPERATING PROFIT 

 

The operating profit (2018 - operating Profit) is stated after charging/ (crediting): 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Operating lease rents  29,297 26,572 

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets  36,583 3,630 

Amortisation of Intangible assets  294,177 258,266 

Cost of stock recognised as expenses  16,825,211 17,002,072 

 

 

 

5. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

 

Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

For audit services 
Audit of the company's financial statements  8,000 8,000 

For other services  1,000 1,000 

 

6. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Bank interest on loans and overdraft  14,876 70,868 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

7. TAXATION 

 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Current tax 

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period  697,418 784,143 

 

 

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit per the profit and Loss account as follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Profit before Taxation on continued operations  3,713,248 3,927,468 

 

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by standard 

Rate of corporation tax of 19% (2018-19%)  705,517 746,219 

 

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit           5,196 3,042 

Unutilized tax losses carry forward  - - 

Group relief   - - 

Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation         (13,295) 34,882 

                                                                                                         (8,099) 37,924 

 

Tax expense for the year  697,418 784,143 

 

 

8. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 

 At 31 March 2019 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Expiry Date: 

Within one year 

Between two and five year                                                              

  145,010 

9,39,388 

  167 

 

After five year  1,731,648  

 

9. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 Development 

 costs 

 £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 5,165,350 

 Additions 718,199 

  

 At 31 March 2019 5,883,549 

  

 AMORTISATION 

 At 1 April 2018 2,407,230 

 Amortisation for year  294,177 

  

 At 31 March 2019 2,701,407 

  

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 3,182,142 

  

 At 31 March 2018 2,758,120 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

 Fixtures 

 and 

 fittings 

 £ 

 COST 

 At 1 April 2018 18,151 

 Additions 164,766 

  

 At 31 March 2019 182,917 

  

 DEPRECIATION 

 At 1 April 2018 11,853 

 Charge for year  36,583 

  

 At 31 March 2019 48,436 

  

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2019 134,481 

  

 At 31 March 2018 6,298 

  

 

11. STOCKS 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Finished goods and goods for resale    5,387,609 6,118,820 

 

 

Financial instruments 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Carrying amount of financial assets 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost  11,132,816 9,585,883 

 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost   7,573,421 8,688,618 

 

 

12. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Trade debtors 4,387,233 3,351,381 

 Amounts owed by group undertakings 6,696,089 6,178,474 

 Other debtors 49,494 56,028 

 Prepayments and accrued income 190,364 10,042 

    

 11,323,180 9,595,925 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

13. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  

 2019  2018 

 £ £ 

 Trade creditors 602,298 618,797 

 Loans and overdrafts 181,622 692,775 

 Amounts owed to group undertakings 5,928,545 7,128,475 

 Corporation tax payable 409,942 779,875 

 Social security and other taxes  28,054 61,032 

 Accruals and deferred income 860,956 248,571 

   

 8,011,417 9,529,525 

   

 

14. CASH FLOW EXEMPTION 

 

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial 

statements which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102. 

 

15. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

 

 

 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 

 Number: Class: Nominal 2019  2018 

 value: £ £ 

 2,300 Ordinary share capital £1 2,300 2,300 

   

 

16. RESERVES 

 Retained  Share 

 earnings  premium  Totals 

 £ £ £ 

 

 At 1 April 2018 3,332,514 6,909,121 10,241,635 

 Profit for the year  3,015,830 3,015,830 

      

 At 31 March 2019 6,348,344 6,909,121 13,257,465 

      

 

17. LOANS 

 

An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below: 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Amounts falling due within one year or on demand: 

Bank overdraft  181,622 692,775 

 

The company's overdraft facility is secured on an all asset debenture charge creating a first charge over all 

freehold property and other assets within the company together with a corporate together with a corporate 

guarantee from the ultimate parent company, Marksans Pharma Limted , for the whole credit facility. 

 

18. PENSION COMMITMENTS 

 

Defined contribution schemes 

The company operated a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the 

scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund. 

 The charge to profit and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was £ 33,030 (2018-£ 29,233) 
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Relonchem Limited 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 

 

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

Remuneration of key management personnel 

Remuneration of key management personnel, including those who are also director, is as follow 

 

 2019 2018 

£  £  

Aggregate compensation  191,310 322,374 

  

 

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial 

statements which are publicly available. Accordingly, the Company has taken the exemption from disclosing 

related party transactions with companies under the same control in accordance with FRS 102-Section 33 

"Related Party Disclosures" 

 

At the yearend a balance of £40,000 (2018- £40,000) was due to Relonchem from Satish Kumar, a director of 

the company 

 

20. CONTROLLING PARTY  

 

The immediate parent undertaking is Marksans Pharma U.K Limited. The parent undertaking of the smallest 

group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is Marksons Pharma U.K. Limited. Consolidated accounts 

are available from Companies House, Cardiff, CF 14 3 UZ. 

 

The Parents undertaking of the largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is Marksans Pharma 

Limited, a company incorported in India. Consolidated accounts are available from the Registrar of  

Companies, Everest 100, Marine Drive, Mumbai- 400 002, Maharashtra. 

 

In the opinion of the directors, Marksans Pharma Limited is the company's Ultimate parent Company and 

ultimate controlling party. 

 

21. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 

 

Previous year figures have been rearranged/ regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary to facilitate 

comparison with the current year figures. 
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